
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING OCTOBER 1, 2014   Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 1, 2014 7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CALIFORNIA 92252 

AGENDA 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
This public comment portion of this agenda provides an opportunity for the public to address the Board of 
Directors on items not listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public at large and are within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of this Board.  The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from taking action on matters 
discussed that are not on the agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Board does not 
respond to public comments at this time.  Comments that concern individual customer accounts are welcome, 
however we encourage doing so only after other administrative avenues for redress have been fully exhausted.  
In all cases, your concerns will be referred to the General Manager for review and a timely response.  
 
Comments are to be limited to three minutes per speaker and shall not exceed a total of 20 minutes.  All 
comments are to be directed to the Board of Directors and shall not consist of any personal attacks.  Members 
of the public are expected to maintain a professional, courteous decorum during their comments.  Public input 
may be offered on an agenda item when the item comes up for discussion and/or action.  Members of the 
public who wish to speak shall proceed to the podium when called by the President of the Board.  Please state 
your name and community of residence for the record. 
 

 
 
 
Pg. 1-3 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will 
be adopted in total by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any 
individual or organization interested in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard. 

A. Approve Draft Minutes of the September 17, 2014 Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Directors 
 

Pg. 4-47 7. REVIEW AND APPROVE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE HDMC AGREEMENT FOR 
OWNERSHIP AND OPERATION OF THE WASTE WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
Recommend that the Board approve the Amendment. 
 

  

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING OCTOBER 1, 2014   Page 2 of 2 
 

Pg. 48-59 8. CHROMIUM 6 UPDATE   
Recommend that the Board receive General Overview Information Only. 
 

Pg. 60-62 9. DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL FOR THE GENERAL MANAGER TO PROCEED WITH 
HIRING A CHIEF OF OPERATIONS 
Recommend the Board’s approval for the General Manager to find and hire a Chief of Operations. 
 

Pg. 63-68 10. AMEND THE BOARD’S BEST PRACTICES DOCUMENT 
Recommend that the Board approve and adopt the revised document. 
 

 11. STANDING: 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Director  Luckman and President Fuller:   

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report. 
B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson 

 
 12. PUBLIC COMMENT 

At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the Board’s 
jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone.  The Board may 
not discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda. 
 

 13. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 

 14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 15. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 
A. Technical Advisory Committee Meeting - October 2, 2014 - 10:00 AM   
B. Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors – October 9, 2014 – 4:30 PM at JBWD 

 
 16. INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 

 
 17. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 

 
 18. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
 19. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
INFORMATION 
 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 
District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 
 
This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on October 8 at 7:00 pm and October 15 at 7:00 pm.   
DVD recordings of Joshua Basin Water District Board meetings are available at the District office and at the Joshua Tree Library 
 



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING SEPTEMBER 17, 2014    Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

September 17, 2014 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Victoria Fuller 
Bob Johnson 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Absent 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 9 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Luckman/Johnson 4/0 (1 Absent) to approve the agenda for the September 3rd, 2014 meeting. 
  Fuller  Aye  
   Johnson Aye  
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Absent  
   Wilson  Aye  
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 MSC Luckman/Johnson 4/0 (1 absent) to approve the consent calendar.  

 Fuller Aye  
    Johnson   Aye  
    Luckman   Aye  
    Reynolds   Absent 
    Wilson   Aye  
 

7. 4th QUARTER ENDING 6/30/14 FINANCIAL REPORT SUMMARY 
 

Assistant General Manager Greer presented the 4th Quarter Ending 6/30/14 Financial Report Summary, which 
was received by the Board. 
 

  



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING SEPTEMBER 17, 2014    Page 2 of 3 
 

 

8. DISCUSS OPERATOR CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 
 

Assistant General Manager Greer explained the certification requirements and the training of employees.  Also 
identified the certifications of all JBWD employees and ongoing training and renewals. 
 
9. PRESENTATION ON CUSTOMER SERVICE FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSBILITIES 
Assistant General Manager Greer explained all of the responsibilities in detail of the Office Customer Service 
and the Field Customer Service each day. 
 
Buck Buckley, ratepayer brought up theft issues.  Buck lives on Sunfair area and has had his line tapped twice.  
His neighbor next store has stolen a water meter.  Buck is concerned because all that is done is pull the meter 
and there was no prosecution. 
 
Anthony Bowers, ratepayer communicated that he would like to request that the district standardize their 
language, specifically on the telephone to reflect the street name Chollita to be pronounced (Choy-ita).  Also 
instead of water board to call ourselves Joshua Basin Water District. 
 

 

10. STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Director Luckman and President Fuller 

 Kathleen Radnich gave Public Information Committee Report.  The docent meeting is on September 19 
 at 3:00 pm at JBWD, the Tank Art Project is starting  on October 7, the Chamber Mixer is at JBWD on  
 October 11. 

B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson: No report. 
 

11.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
Buck Buckley, Ratepayer commented on the operators that are trained and with new law in Sacramento, will 
that affect what they will be qualified to test?  Also, talked about Chromium 6. 
  

 

12. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 
Gil spoke about the Groundwater Legislation “Sustainable Groundwater Management Act”.   
Also, talked about Chromium 6 updates. 
 
14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
Assistant General Manager Greer talked about the storm in Joshua Tree yesterday and read a report from Jim 
Corbin, Distribution Supervisor.  Several mainlines were exposed.  Many areas were flooded and additional 
staff was called in for various troubleshooting.  We have a dedicated field crew.  Also, the District had damage 
to the demo garden and will be closed for a few days.   
 
Assistant General Manager Greer talked about the audit.  The auditors spent only two days at District this year 
which is the result of significant advance preparation of our staff.  No issues or concerns were identified.  Will 
be taking a draft of audit report to the Finance Committee.  Thanks to our accountant, Anne Roman for her 
diligent effort and long hours. 
 
 
 



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING SEPTEMBER 17, 2014    Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Regarding Chromium 6, we are preparing a pre-application for State revolving fund for Chromium 6 treatment. 
 
Gave Recharge Project update. 
 
Assistant General Manager Greer spoke about Karl Wyne who was killed in the storm yesterday and talked 
about his contribution when he was Director at JBWD.  Condolences to Karl’s wife and family and friends.  
 
15. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 

 
Mojave Valley Agency meeting on 2nd Thursday, October 9th at 4:30 pm at JBWD. 
 
16.  INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
None 
 
17. DIRECTORS REPORT 
Director Wilson talked about Karl Wyne’s contribution and expressed condolences to wife and family. 
Director Johnson expressed condolences to the Wyne family and his services to the district.  Special thanks for 
Curt’s updates and thanks to Anne Roman for her excellent job in the Finance Committee. 
Director Luckman expressed condolences to the Wyne family. 
Director Fuller expressed condolences to Wyne family.  Also gave acknowledgement to staff for great job 
responding to the rain storm and the also the General Manager updating everyone. 
 
18. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

No future agenda items 
 

19. ADJOURNMENT 7:59 PM 
MSC Luckman/Reynolds 4/0 (1 absent) to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of  
September 17, 2014 in honor of Karl Wyne 
 Fuller             Aye 

 Johnson  Aye 
 Luckman  Aye 

 Reynolds  Aye  
 Wilson  Aye 

 

 Respectfully submitted:  
 
 
_________________________________ 
Curt Sauer, General Manager and Board Secretary 

 
 































































































  

 

September 15, 2014 4358 

Curt Sauer 

General Manager 

Joshua Basin Water District 

61750 Chollita Road 

Joshua Tree, California 92252 

Subject: Proposed Scope of Work and Fee to Profile Five Water Supply Wells for 

Hexavalent Chromium 

Dear Mr. Sauer: 

Dudek is pleased to present this proposed scope of work and fee to profile five water supply 

wells operated and maintained by the Joshua Basin Water district (the District). The five wells 

are District wells JBWD-10, JBWD-14, JBWD-15, JBWD-16 and JBWD-17. The purpose for 

profiling these wells is to identify potential zones and/or strata that contribute naturally occurring 

hexavalent chromium (Cr(VI)) at concentrations that exceed the maximum contaminant level 

(MCL) of 10 micrograms per liter (ug/L). Profiling at each well will include a static (i.e. non-

pumping condition) temperature and conductivity survey, a dynamic (i.e. pumping condition) 

flow meter survey to measure flow entering each well, and depth-discrete water quality sampling 

to measure the concentrations of hexavalent chromium and other constituents.  The results of the 

profiling will be used to develop and present recommendations to JBWD that may include 

implementing well modifications, treatment, and/or blending to reduce Cr(VI) concentrations to 

levels below the MCL. The background, project understanding and tasks to complete the work 

are as follows: 

BACKGROUND 

Water quality sampling from 2001 to 2014 by the United States Geological Survey (USGS) 

indicated that Cr(VI) concentrations ranged from 13 ug/L to 36 ug/L at wells JBWD-10, JBWD-

14, JBWD-15, JBWD-16 and JBWD-17. The USGS profiled well JBWD-15 in February 2002 

and indicated that the upper portion of the lower well screen may contribute water with Cr(VI) 

greater than 10 ug/L. Well JBWD-16 was profiled by the USGS in December 2001 and it 

appeared that the lower well screen contributed water with Cr(VI) at more than 30 ug/L. It 

appears that there is some differentiation in Cr(VI) concentrations in groundwater entering wells 

JBWD 15 and JBWD 16. The proposed profiling will confirm the USGS results and further 



Mr. Curt Sauer 

Subject: Proposed Scope of Work and Fee to Profile Five Water Supply Wells for Hexavalent 

Chromium 

  4358 
 2 July 2014  

enhance our understanding of the naturally occurring Cr(VI) at these wells and at wells JBWD-

10, JBWD-14 and JBWD-17.  

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

Dudek understands that the objectives of the well profiling are:    

• To identify the vertical distribution and contribution of Cr(VI) at wells JBWD-10, 
JBWD-14, JBWD-15, JBWD-16 and JBWD-17 

• To recommend well management alternatives, either by well modifications, 
treatment, or blending with alternative sources of water, to reduce Cr(VI) in the well 
discharges to levels below the MCL. 

To meet these objectives, Dudek proposes the following tasks: 

1. Collect and review existing hydrogeological data and well construction and water quality 
data of the five JBWD wells; 

2. Inspect the existing well head configurations to determine how to profile the wells; 

3. Conduct down-well surveys at wells JBWD-10, JBWD-14, JBWD-15, JBWD-16 and 
JBWD-17 to obtain direct evidence of conditions in the wells; 

4. Collect and analyze depth-discrete water quality samples from the well(s) and draft a 
technical report with recommendations to improve water quality. 

The down-well surveys will include the following at each well: 

1. A temperature and fluid electrical conductivity (EC) survey under static conditions; 

2. A flow (spinner) survey conducted under dynamic conditions; 

3. A temperature and fluid EC survey under dynamic conditions; 

4. The collection of depth-discrete water quality samples from specific depths based on the 

results of the static and dynamic temperature and fluid EC surveys, and from 

hydrogeological information of the basin and historical water quality data from each well. 

The water quality samples will be sent to Eurofins Eaton Analytical, Inc. of Monrovia, California 

to analyze for Cr(VI) using EPA Method 218.6, which is the required analytical method for 

potable water systems in California. Additionally, the water quality samples will be analyzed for 

nitrate (as NO3), sulfate, arsenic, alkalinity, and total dissolved solids (TDS). Understanding the 

concentrations of these constituents will be considered in the design of a treatment system if 

treatment is recommended. A mass balance calculation will be performed using the dynamic 

spinner survey to estimate the percentage of flow from specific zones and contributions of 

Cr(VI) of the screened intervals. 



Mr. Curt Sauer 

Subject: Proposed Scope of Work and Fee to Profile Five Water Supply Wells for Hexavalent 

Chromium 

  4358 
 3 July 2014  

SCOPE OF WORK 

The scope of work and fee is dependent on the type of access at each well for the survey tools 

and equipment. There are three different possible scenarios for profiling the wells: 

1. access the wells via existing 1.5-inch diameter or greater access tubes that extend below the 

pump bowls (if it is a turbine) or below the submersible pump and motor; or 

2. access the wells by pulling the dedicated pump(s) to set a temporary submersible pump and 2-

inch diameter access tube; or 

3. leave the wells as they are and use a small diameter hose (<1 inch in diameter) to inject a 

fluorescent dye to profile flow and collect depth-discrete water quality samples. 

Pacific Surveys of Claremont, California, is the contractor proposed to conduct the surveys under 

scenario 1 or scenario 2. The estimated fee to use Pacific Surveys and complete the well profiles 

under scenario 1 is $94,632.50 (see Table 1). If the wells are not accessible for Pacific Surveys in 

their current configuration and the dedicated pumps remain in place as is, then the well profiling 

may be conducted using BESST, Inc., which uses a small diameter hose (<1 inch in diameter) to 

inject a fluorescent dye to profile flow and collect depth-discrete water quality samples. The dye 

used is regulated by NSF International to ANSI/NSF 60 for use in drinking water at a maximum 

use level (MUL) of 0.8 parts per billion (ppb) (0.8 ug/L or 0.0008 mg/L). This regulation will 

limit the amount of dye used, which will dictate the resolution of the flow survey and may 

require the wells to be discharged to waste. The amount of dye used and whether the pumped 

water is discharged to waste will be evaluated if this is the scenario selected to profile the wells. 

The estimated fee to use BESST, Inc. and complete the well profiles under scenario 3 is 

$162,281.25 (see Table 3).  

If some or all of the dedicated pumps are pulled and temporary equipment is set for Pacific 

Surveys to conduct the well profiling (scenario 2), then the fee is $97,912.50 (see Table 2). This 

includes labor hours for Dudek personnel to oversee the pump pulls and setting of temporary 

equipment. Dudek assumes that the District will contract directly with a contractor to pull the 

dedicated pumps and set the temporary access tubing and submersible pumps, and so this cost 

does not include the estimated costs to pull and reset dedicated pumps. If the cost for pulling the 

dedicated pumps approaches the cost for using BESST, then the recommendation is to proceed 

with profiling the wells using BESST and leave the wells in their current configuration. The 

decision to use Pacific Surveys or BESST will be made after conducting the well inspections in 

Task 1 (see below) and discussing the current configurations with District staff. 



Mr. Curt Sauer 

Subject: Proposed Scope of Work and Fee to Profile Five Water Supply Wells for Hexavalent 

Chromium 

  4358 
 4 July 2014  

Pacific Surveys did survey wells JBWD-15 and JBWD-16 in 2001/2002 and their logs are 

included in the USGS report on Joshua Basin (Nishikawa et al, 2014). It appears that these two 

wells were accessed via 2-inch diameter access tubes that extended below the pumps, but the 

current conditions of these wells and access tubes are not known. Dudek also assumes that the 

access tube at well JBWD-17 is accessible. Therefore, it may be possible that only the dedicated 

pumps at wells JBWD-10 and JBWD-14 need to be pulled to complete their respective surveys. 

Task 1. Project Coordination, Well Inspection and Logistical Planning 

The first task is to inspect the current well head configurations for each well and determine how 

to proceed with the profiling work. Steven Stuart, the project manager, will conduct the one-day 

wells inspection with District staff, if available, and discuss with District staff his findings and 

his recommendations on how to proceed. Based on the results of the inspection and the direction 

the District would like to proceed, Mr. Stuart will begin coordinating the well profiling work 

with the District and the selected contractor and develop a schedule of work. Mr. Stuart will 

coordinate all activities with the District and ensure that all required documentation and 

procedures are provided and followed.  

If the dedicated pumps are pulled from some or all of the wells, then this task includes additional 

labor hours for Dudek staff to oversee the pulling of pumps and setting of temporary equipment 

to facilitate the profiling work. These hours are included in Table 2. 

Cost for Task 1 ............................................................................................ $6,400.00 to $9,680.00 

Task 2. Down-Well Surveys   

Dudek will coordinate with Pacific Surveys, Inc. (if their tools can access the wells) or BESST, 

Inc. (fluorescent dye profiling) to perform the down-well surveys. These surveys will include: 

• Fluid temperature/EC surveys under static and dynamic pumping conditions. 
• Spinner (i.e. flow meter) surveys 
• Collect up to 10 zone-specific and depth discrete water quality samples and analyze 

for concentrations of Cr(VI), nitrate, sulfate, arsenic, alkalinity, and total dissolved 
solids (TDS). 

The following summarizes the scope of work proposed to profile wells JBWD-10, JBWD-14, 

JBWD-15, JBWD-16 and JBWD-17: 



Mr. Curt Sauer 

Subject: Proposed Scope of Work and Fee to Profile Five Water Supply Wells for Hexavalent 

Chromium 

  4358 
 5 July 2014  

1. Prepare each well for access of profiling equipment before surveying commences. This 

may include pulling dedicated pumps and setting temporary access tubing and 

submersible pumps. 

2. Conduct static temperature/EC surveys of each well. Each well must be idle for 24 

hours before the static survey to ensure static conditions. 

3. Conduct spinner survey followed by dynamic temperature/EC survey at each well. Each 

well must be pumping at or near maximum rate for 24 hours prior to these surveys to 

ensure stable hydraulic conditions. 

4. Review dynamic surveys immediately after they are conducted to select depths for 

depth-discrete water quality samples. Collect samples while well continues to pump. 

5. Anticipate 2 days to complete the static surveys for all five wells. 

6. Anticipate 1 day to complete the dynamic surveys and collect water quality samples at 

each well, giving 5 days total to complete the dynamic surveys and water quality sample 

collection for all five wells. 

7. Send water quality samples to Eaton Laboratory after collection at each well. Anticipate 

a 7- to 14-day turn-around time for analytical results. 

Deliverables: Copies of fluid temperature/EC survey logs, spinner survey logs, and analytical 
laboratory reports for depth-discrete water quality samples collected at each well. 

Cost for Task 2 ...................................................................................... $66,133.00 to $133,781.00 

Task 3. Technical Report  

After characterizing the vertical distribution of Cr(VI) at each well, and calculating the mass 

balance of the percentage of flow from specific zones, Dudek will analyze the profiling and 

water quality data and identify potential zones that contribute naturally occurring Cr(VI) at 

concentrations greater than the MCL of 10 ug/L. Based on the analysis, Dudek will develop and 

present to the District recommendations to reduce the concentration of Cr(VI) in water produced 

by the wells. The recommendations may include, but not be limited to, well modifications where, 

for example, a section of screen is sealed off from contributing Cr(VI) to the discharge, 

treatment, and/or blending of other water or treated water to reduce Cr(VI) to below the MCL. 

Dudek will provide the District with a technical report detailing the work conducted during 

profiling, the results of each survey, an analysis of the data with conclusions and 

recommendations to improve water quality from each well. 

Cost for Task 3 ................................................................................................................$15,700.00 



Mr. Curt Sauer 

Subject: Proposed Scope of Work and Fee to Profile Five Water Supply Wells for Hexavalent 

Chromium 

  4358 
 6 July 2014  

Task 4. Meetings and Project Management  

Steven Stuart, Dudek’s project manager, will attend two meetings with District staff. The first 

meeting will be a kick-off meeting to visit each well site with District staff and assess the 

accessibility at each well head, along with access for contractors. The second meeting will be a 

post-profiling meeting to discuss with District staff the findings from the down-well surveys and 

the recommendations we have for reducing Cr(VI) concentrations at each well. 

Cost for Task 4 ..................................................................................................................$6,400.00 

PROJECT FEE 

The following summarizes the fee based on the accessibility for profiling tools at wells JBWD-

10, JBWD-14, JBWD-15, JBWD-16 and JBWD-17. There are three different scenarios to profile 

the wells: (1) the wells are accessible and Pacific Surveys can use its tools under current 

wellhead conditions, (2) the dedicated pumps will need to be pulled and temporary access tubing 

and submersible pumps will need to be set, and (3) the need to use a small diameter hose to inject 

a fluorescent dye to profile flow and collect depth-discrete water quality samples. The following 

lists the total costs for each scenario. Note that these fees do not include contractor’s costs for 

pulling dedicated pumps and/or setting temporary access tubes and submersible pumps. Dudek 

assumes the District will contract directly with a contractor to perform that work. 

Scenario 1: Total Cost (Pacific Surveys as is)  ............................................................$94,632.50 

Option 2: Total Cost (Pacific Surveys with Pump Pulls)  ..........................................$97,912.50 

Option 3: Total Cost (BESST, Inc. as is)  ..................................................................$162,681.25 

 

  





TABLE 1. Fee Schedule for Well Profiling Using Pacific Surveys under Current Wellhead Conditions

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT

Down-Well Profiling of Water Supply Wells for Hexavalent Chromium

Project Team Role:
Principal-in-

Charge

Senior 

Engineer/PM

Hydrogeologist 

III

Team Member: P. Quinlan, RG S. Stuart, PE J. Kubran

Billable Rate : $235 $200 $120

Task 1 - Project Coordination and Logistical Planning

1-1
Coordinate with District, Contractor(s), and Analytical 

Laboratory
16 20 36 5,600$              -$                    5,600$                    

1-2 Set Temporary Access Tubes (if necessary) 4 4 800$                 800$                       

Subtotal Task 1 20 20 40 6,400$              -$                    6,400$                    

Task 2 - Profile Wells

2-1 JBWD-10 2 4 20 26 3,670$              9,557$                13,227$                  

2-2 JBWD-14 2 4 20 26 3,670$              9,557$                13,227$                  

2-3 JBWD-15 2 4 20 26 3,670$              9,557$                13,227$                  

2-4 JBWD-16 2 4 20 26 3,670$              9,557$                13,227$                  

2-5 JBWD-17 2 4 20 26 3,670$              9,557$                13,227$                  

Subtotal Task 2 10 20 100 130 18,350$            47,783$              66,133$                  

Task 3 - Technical Report

3-1 Receive, Compile and Analyze Data 10 20 24 54 9,230$              -$                    9,230$                    

3-2 Draft Technical Report 2 6 40 48 6,470$              -$                    6,470$                    

Subtotal Task 3 12 26 64 102 15,700$            -$                    15,700$                  

Task  4 - Meetings and Project Management

4-1 Meetings 16 16 3,200$              -$                    3,200$                    

4-2 Project Management 16 16 3,200$              -$                    3,200$                    

Subtotal Task 4 32 32 6,400$              -$                    6,400$                    

Total Hours and Fee 22 98 184 304 46,850.00$  47,782.50$   94,632.50$       

Percent of Hours: 7% 32% 61% 100%

1 

1) Direct costs include well permit fees, drill cutting waste profiling and disposal, transducer costs and well location surveying  

TOTAL 

HOURS

 DUDEK 

LABOR COST 

OTHER DIRECT 

COSTS TOTAL FEE



TABLE 2. Fee Schedule for Well Profiling using Pacific Surveys after Pulling Dedicated Pumps

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT

Down-Well Profiling of Water Supply Wells for Hexavalent Chromium

Project Team Role:
Principal-in-

Charge

Senior 

Engineer/PM

Hydrogeologist 

III

Team Member: P. Quinlan, RG S. Stuart, PE J. Kubran

Billable Rate : $235 $200 $120

Task 1 - Project Coordination and Logistical Planning

1-1
Coordinate with District, Contractor(s), and Analytical 

Laboratory
16 20 36 5,600$              5,600$                    

Pump Pulls + Set Temporary Submersible Pumps 6 24 30 4,080$              4,080$                    

Subtotal Task 1 22 44 66 9,680$              -$                    9,680$                    

Task 2 - Profile Wells

2-1 JBWD-10 2 4 20 26 3,670$              9,557$                13,227$                  

2-2 JBWD-14 2 4 20 26 3,670$              9,557$                13,227$                  

2-3 JBWD-15 2 4 20 26 3,670$              9,557$                13,227$                  

2-4 JBWD-16 2 4 20 26 3,670$              9,557$                13,227$                  

2-5 JBWD-17 2 4 20 26 3,670$              9,557$                13,227$                  

Subtotal Task 2 10 20 100 130 18,350$            47,783$              66,133$                  

Task 3 - Technical Report

3-1 Receive, Compile and Analyze Data 10 20 24 54 9,230$              -$                    9,230$                    

3-2 Draft Technical Report 2 6 40 48 6,470$              -$                    6,470$                    

Subtotal Task 3 12 26 64 102 15,700$            -$                    15,700$                  

Task  4 - Meetings and Project Management

4-1 Meetings 16 16 3,200$              -$                    3,200$                    

4-2 Project Management 16 16 3,200$              -$                    3,200$                    

Subtotal Task 4 32 32 6,400$              -$                    6,400$                    

Total Hours and Fee 22 100 208 330 50,130.00$  47,782.50$   97,912.50$       

Percent of Hours: 7% 30% 63% 100%

1 

1) Direct costs include well permit fees, drill cutting waste profiling and disposal, transducer costs and well location surveying  

TOTAL 

HOURS

 DUDEK 

LABOR COST 

OTHER DIRECT 

COSTS TOTAL FEE



TABLE 3. Fee Schedule for Well Profiling using BESST, Inc. under Current Wellhead Conditions

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT

Down-Well Profiling of Water Supply Wells for Hexavalent Chromium

Project Team Role:
Principal-in-

Charge

Senior 

Engineer/PM

Hydrogeologist 

III

Team Member: P. Quinlan, RG S. Stuart, PE J. Kubran

Billable Rate : $235 $200 $120

Task 1 - Project Coordination and Logistical Planning

1-1
Coordinate with District, Contractor(s), and Analytical 

Laboratory
18 20 38 6,000$              6,000$                    

1-2 Set Temporary Access Tubes 4 4 800$                 800$                       

Subtotal Task 1 22 20 42 6,800$              -$                    6,800$                    

Task 2 - Profile Wells

2-1 JBWD-10 2 4 20 26 3,670$              23,086$              26,756$                  

2-2 JBWD-14 2 4 20 26 3,670$              23,086$              26,756$                  

2-3 JBWD-15 2 4 20 26 3,670$              23,086$              26,756$                  

2-4 JBWD-16 2 4 20 26 3,670$              23,086$              26,756$                  

2-5 JBWD-17 2 4 20 26 3,670$              23,086$              26,756$                  

Subtotal Task 2 10 20 100 130 18,350$            115,431$            133,781$                

Task 3 - Technical Report

3-1 Receive, Compile and Analyze Data 10 20 24 54 9,230$              -$                    9,230$                    

3-2 Draft Technical Report 2 6 40 48 6,470$              -$                    6,470$                    

Subtotal Task 3 12 26 64 102 15,700$            -$                    15,700$                  

Task  4 - Meetings and Project Management

4-1 Meetings 16 16 3,200$              -$                    3,200$                    

4-2 Project Management 16 16 3,200$              -$                    3,200$                    

Subtotal Task 4 32 32 6,400$              -$                    6,400$                    

Total Hours and Fee 22 100 184 306 47,250.00$  115,431.25$ 162,681.25$     

Percent of Hours: 7% 33% 60% 100%

1 

1) Direct costs include well permit fees, drill cutting waste profiling and disposal, transducer costs and well location surveying  

TOTAL 

HOURS

 DUDEK 

LABOR COST 

OTHER DIRECT 

COSTS TOTAL FEE







 

   

These positions 
currently not filled 

PART-TIME 
GENERAL OFFICE 

(1 POSITION) 

FIELD SERVICE 
TECHNICIAN 
(1 POSITION) 

CONSTRUCTION & 
MAINTENANCE I/II 

(4 POSITIONS) 

CONSTRUCTION & 
MAINTENANCE LEAD 

 

DISTRIBUTION 
SUPERVISOR 
(1 POSITION) 

WATER PRODUCTION 
SUPERVISOR 
(1 POSITION) 

WATER PRODUCTION 
OPERATOR I/II 
(2 POSITIONS) 

WATER PRODUCTION  
LEAD 

 

CHIEF OF OPERATIONS 
(1 POSITION) 

ACCOUNTING 
TECHNICIAN 
(1 POSITION) 

CUSTOMER 
SERVICE 

REPRESENTATIVE 
(1 POSITION) 

FIELD SERVICE 
TECHNICIAN 
(1 POSITION) 

LEAD CUSTOMER 
SERVICE  

(1 POSITION) 

ACCOUNTANT 
LEAD 

(1 POSITION) 

ACCOUNTS 
RECEIVABLE 
(1 POSITION) 

SENIOR 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

ASSISTANT  
(1 POSITION) 

GENERAL MANAGER 

GIS COORDINATOR 
(1 POSITION) 

AGM/CONTROLLER 
(1 POSITION) 

SAFETY DIRECTOR 
(1 POSITION) 
PART TIME 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (5) 

HR MANAGER 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

SPECIALIST 
(1 POSITION) 

EXECUTIVE 
SECRETARY 
(1 POSITION) 

General Unit    
Non-Exempt 

Management/Supervisory/
Confidential   Exempt 

JBWD REGISTERED VOTERS 





   
ROLE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Sections: 
1.1  Purpose. 
1.2 Role of the board of directors. 
1.3 Public representation. 
1.4 Employee relations and discipline. 
1.5 Use and safeguarding of district property and resources. 
1.6 Use of legal counsel by members of the board of directors. 
1.7 Instructions to staff. 

1.1 Purpose. 
To provide guidance to the board of directors on duties and responsibilities to Joshua Basin Water 
District. 

The board, except as otherwise specifically preceded by law or these rules of procedure, shall 
constitute the governing body of the district. 

1.2 Role of the board of directors. 
A. The district’s policies, mission, goals and programs are established by a majority of the 
board of directors at public meetings. The board will not direct management on how to implement 
policy but will hold management responsible if the policy of the agency is not implemented. 

B. The general manager shall recommend programs to implement district policy to the board 
at public meetings unless instructed by the board to report to a committee or individual directors. 
The manager shall carry out the programs approved by the board without modification. 

C. Individual directors are encouraged to inquire of the general manager as to the status of 
programs. The general manager shall in a timely manner provide information requested by 
directors as necessary to assist in decision making and policy direction. Routine requests, orally or 
in writing, for readily available written information or documents shall not require formal board 
approval. Requests which involve other than routine collection of data from more than one source, 
compilation of data from one or more sources, or preparation of written reports, studies, analyses 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrictNT.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrictNT.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrictNT.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrictNT.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrict01/HiDesertWaterDistrict0120.html#1.20.070


or tabulations, requiring more than two hours of staff time, shall be submitted to the board of 
directors by the individual director for formal approval. All directors’ requests shall be treated 
uniformly and responded to in a fair and courteous manner. 

In the event a disagreement arises over such a request the president of the board of directors shall 
be consulted. The decision of the board president as to the best manner of responding to such 
request shall be final unless modified or reversed by a majority vote of the board of directors. 

Directors shall not request information from subordinate staff. Directors requesting information shall 
not instruct staff as to the manner of responding to such request or the performance of their duties 
generally. Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting any director from asking a request pursuant 
to the California Public Records Act. 

D. The board identifies problems; the general manager assists. Staff develops programs to 
address problems. The board approves programs and identifies new problems for staff attention. 
New programs require new staff, new financing, and possibly new equipment and a new plan. 

E. An individual board member has the privilege of inspecting all public records but no greater 
rights in the day-to-day operation of an agency than the public.  

F. The board employs the general manager of the district. 

G. The general manager is the secretary of the district. 

H. The board defines the responsibilities of the general manager’s and delegate’s authority. 
The board monitors progress and redirects, if necessary. 

I. The board provides the general manager with resources needed to carry out the policies 
and programs of the board. 

J. The board adopts the district budget. 

K. The board approves district head count. 

L. The board establishes employee benefit programs and approves pay ranges. 



M. The board establishes all rules and regulations governing employees on the job. 

N. The board hires the district’s legal counsel and auditor. 

O. The board approves the check register. 

P. The board conveys easements and real property of the district. 

Q. The board approves acquisitions and/or purchase of real property.  

1.3 Public representation. 
A. Addressing the Public on Behalf of the District. Providing the board has taken action by 
majority vote, the board president or other designee of the board may address the public on behalf 
of the district. Such director or representative may expressly introduce themselves as a 
representative of the district or as speaking on behalf of the board of directors. 

B. Addressing the Public as Individuals. When publicly expressing opinions regarding any 
aspect of district business, it is requested that directors state that they are expressing their own 
opinions and not representing the district or the board as a whole unless so directed by the board, 
or unless otherwise expressing official district policy as formally expressed previously by the board 
of directors. Directors should refrain from introducing themselves in a manner which implies they 
are speaking on behalf of the district, expressing official district policy or speaking on behalf of the 
board of directors.  

1.4 Employee relations and discipline. 
All district personnel matters, including employee discipline, have been specifically designated the 
responsibility of the general manager by the board of directors. 

A. Board members shall not, in the performance of their official functions, discriminate against 
or harass any person on the basis of race, religion, color, creed, age, marital status, national origin, 
ancestry, sex, sexual preference, medical condition or disability. A board member will not grant any 
special consideration, treatment, or advantage to any person or group beyond that which is 
available to every other person or group in similar circumstances. 



B. Individual members of the board of directors shall not supervise, discipline or attempt to 
direct district personnel other than through the general manager or his designee, with majority 
approval of the board of directors. 

C. Interference with district employee relations or efforts to discipline public employees of the 
district by individual members of the board of directors, without majority approval of the board of 
directors, shall be grounds for public censure and such other administrative and legal penalties as 
the board of directors may deem appropriate.  

1.5 Use and safeguarding of district property and resources. 
Except as specifically authorized by a majority of the board, a board member will not use or permit 
the use of district-owned vehicles, equipment, telephones, materials or property for personal 
convenience or profit. A board member will not ask or require a district employee to perform 
services for the personal convenience or profit of a board member or employee. Each board 
member must protect and properly use any district assets within his or her control, including 
information recorded on paper or in electronic form. Board members will safeguard district 
property, equipment, money and assets against unauthorized use or removal, as well as from loss 
due to criminal act or breach of trust.  

1.6 Use of legal counsel by members of the board of directors. 
In order to control legal costs, the board policy is to permit the use of district legal counsel by 
individual directors only as follows: 

A. An individual director must consult with the general manager prior to any consultation with 
general legal counsel. 

B. An individual director may initiate consultation with general legal counsel regarding the 
following: 

1. A legal matter relating directly to district or board business, but not for matters of 
personal business to the director or matters adverse to the interests of the district or the 
board as a whole, except as set forth in subsection (B)(3) of this section. Consultation must 
be limited to relatively simple questions which relate directly to the statutory authority of the 



board or to procedures applicable to the board and which do not require a written opinion or 
significant amounts of legal or factual analysis. 

2. An individual director may initiate consultation with special legal counsel regarding a 
legal matter relating directly to district or board business, but not for matters of personal 
business to the director or matters adverse to the interest of the district or the board as a 
whole. Such consultation may occur only with prior approval of the board. 

3. Nothing in this policy shall prohibit an individual director from seeking the advice of 
general legal counsel on issues related to the director’s individual FPPC Form 700, or other 
relatively simple conflict of interest questions related to the individual director.  

1.7 Instructions to staff. 
All general business of the district, including requests for information and instructions to district 
personnel, is to be conducted through the general manager or his designee.  

   
 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrictNT.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrictNT.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrictNT.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/ca/hidesertwaterdistrict/html/HiDesertWaterDistrictNT.html



